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KeyStone N eigh]oorhood is ideaﬂy located between the
Mississippi River and 14th Avenue from 38th to 45th Streets
in Rock Island. This 1eey location was noted in an 1890s real
estate development plan for the “KeyStone District,”
promotecl by E.H. Guyer. Guyer, a turn-of—the-century Rock
Island 1awyer and land oleveloper, included much of the
present—day neighborhood in his plan. He claimed that “with
your home in KeyStone you will be in(lepen(lent as to your
place of employment, for there is demand for your services on
every side and within easy distance. . ..” And a cliagram
showed that “electric railways transport residents of the
KeyStone District to all the factories of Moline, Rock Islancl,
Davenport and Milan.” Thus, this area was settled primarily
]oy the WOIlQil’lg class. As a result, many of the homes on this
tour were originauy built })y ordinary citizens who wanted
affordable houses in what Guyer sugges’cecl was a healthy site.
He noted that “the elevation insures goocl clrainage and a cool
and ]oracing a’cmosphere, a great contrast to the flat bottoms
where (Roclz Island and Moline) first started. . . . so that there
is no longer any excuse to cling to their unhealthy locations.
Sewers are provided for every lot.” These lots varied in price
from $3OO to $1000 depencling on their location.

Guyer envisioned the KeyStone District, hanay between
the downtowns of Moline and Rock Island, developing into a
“Great Consolidated Ci’cy” with its own courthouse, city haﬂ,
post office, union depo’c and great theater and ul’cima’cely a
population of 60,000 people. This Utopian city never
(levelope(l, but in 1994, the KeyStone name and 1890s 10go
were revived when the KeyStone Neigh]oorhood was
established })y residents.

KeyStone Neighl)orhood consists of six organized sub-
areas: Columbia Parlz, Fairview, Edgewoocl Parle, Brooks
Grove, Coﬂege Heights and Parkview. These names mirror
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some of the original pla’c names used I)y William E. Brooks
When he platted much of this land between 1872 and 1894,
This driving tour will take you past 27 l)uil(lings and homes in
five of the six KeyStone sub-areas. Park View has its own
tour booklet.

One of KeyStone neigh})orhoodys major assets is the wide
variety of historic architectural styles that can be found. In
fact, most of the major s’cyles popular in American
architecture from the 1870s to the 19405 lie Within its
boundaries. KeyStone N eighhor}lood contains an outstancling
variety of American Foursquare style homes. Other of its
]ouildings reflect s’cyles and types including Gothic Revival,
Renaissance Revival, Queen Anne, Shingle, Vernacular,
Colonial Revival, Prairie, Craﬂsman, and Tudor. By the end
of this tour, these styles will be more than just names to you
— they will be associated with the schools and churches and
homes of people who lived in this historic neighborhood.
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1. Lincoln Park (Ca. 1909)

Rock Island residents
commemorated Abraham
Lincoln’s centennial
Lirtllday in 1909 ]oy
naming this east end parlz
in his honor. The 22.75
acre woodland site,
considered one of Rock
Island’s beauty spots, was
selected for its gran(leur

and views overloolemg the
Mississippi River vaﬂey Lincoln Park was expected to someday blossom
into Rock Island’s most popular parle and picnic grouncls.

The northern edge of the parle is delineated Ly the Indian Bounclary
Line. The northwest corner of the parlz contains a bronze plaque on a
peclestal commemorating this historic ]ooun(lary, which was surveye(l in
this area l)y Flack and Bean in 1821, that derived from an 1816 treaty
with Illinois Indian tribes. It was an ar])itrary line across the state,
Leginning at the Mississippi River and extencling east to near Chicago
where it took a s}larp turn to the northeast, meeting Lake Michigan just
north of today's downtown. Indians were forced to move north of the line,
which was also intended to be the Wisconsin-Illinois border. Rock Island
property abstracts still mention the Indian Boundary Line as a reference
point.

One-third of the funds raised to purchase this site in the Brooks
Addition was obtained Ly popular su})scription ; the rest was taken from
the city treasury. In 1920, neigh]:)oring Augustana Coﬂege expressed
interest in acquiring the mostly undeveloped parlz , but citizens (lisagree(l.
“If the parle is sold for a coHege campus, it will be the Rock Island people
who sell it,” said Mayor Harry M. Schriver. Tl’lrough 1920 and 1921
the issue raged. KeyStone founder E.H. Guyer stated, “Lincoln Park was
acquired l)y popular su]:)scrip’cion and in reality ]:)elongs to the people and
any effort to cleprive the people of it should be strenuously resisted.” The
people prevaile(l.

During the 1920 s, improvements slowly began to be seen in the

parlz. Over ensuing years, it proved to bea popular spot where

4



“community play clay" events were held. The hills were alive with athletic
competitions, folk dances and sing—alongs, and the “crowning event of the
clay" — the basket picnic. N eedlework exhibits and children’s art added
color to the day, as did the many playground participants, who were
decked out in little clown
suits.

Naomi Davenport left
funds for Lincoln Park to
the city of Rock Island in
1924. The money was to be
used for three projects: a
fountain in memory of her
sister, Ca’therine; a
bandstand in memory of
her l)rother, Ebenezer Cook
Davenport; and a trust fund
to provide free concerts.
The bandstand construction
laegan in 1934; programs
]Jega.n in 1935.

In 1930 improvements
to convert the stagnant
pond at the south end of
the parle into a wa&ing pool

were macle, funded in full
]:)y the widow of F.C.
Denkmann. Prominent
Rock Island architect
Benjamin A. Horn, of Horn and Sancﬂ)erg, had a part in construction of
the wacling pool and poolhouse shown in the photo... A Bedford
limestone colonnade, called a peristyle , encircled the north side of the
concrete pool. The flat-roofed poolhouse, also of Bedford stone, held
dressing rooms at each end. With its rounded arches topped Ly large
scrolled 12eys’cones and the low relief carving above the ﬂanlzing doors, this

parlz Luilding shows some influences from the Italian Renaissance style.

The $45,000 Denkmann Memorial Pool, considered one of the finest of
its kind in the middle west, was dedicated September 12, 1930, although
Mrs. Denkmann saw that it openecl in August, so children could still

enjoy it that summer.
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World War I had the country rationing coffee, sugar and chocolate
in the 1940s. In the spirit of the war eﬁor’c, families could supplement
their food supplies with vegeta]oles grown in “victory garclen" plo’cs at
Lincoln Park.

In 1956 Don Wooten founded the Genesius Guilcl, a theater group
presenting free classical theater productions and rediscovered the former
Denkmann Poolhouse, which had been closed during the polio scares of
the 1940s. Plays and operas continue here ’toclay, stagecl in front of the
former pooﬂlouse. The Starlight Revue Concert Series also Legan in
1956 at Miss Davenpor’t’s ]Jandsheﬂ, provicling free evening concerts on
Tuesday evenings from early June to mid-August. Ice cream socials were
added in 1976 to increase attendance totals and provide a more festive
atmosphere. By the 1980s, Lincoln Park was in need of rejuvenation. A
$350,000 renovation, which was completed in June of 1986, saw the
Davenport bandshell and the Denkmann structure renovated. A gaze]oo,
surrounded Ly a “sensitivity garclen” consisting of plants grown to be
’couched, was added to the parle and became a popu]ar spot for summer-
time Wecldings. Sand VoHeyLaH courts were installed, tennis courts and
softhall diamonds were improved, and a new picnic shelter was added to
augment the old shelter, which also received a facelift.

The parlz was rededicated June 17, 1986, an evening under the stars
filled with music and dancing. Dignitaries and citizens gathered items for
a 1arge time capsu]e, which was later buried in a secret location in the
parlz. It will be clug up in 2006 for the 50th anniversary of the Starlight

Revue.

2. Alleman High School (1949)
1103 40th Street

Alleman High
School is located in
the College Heights
area of KeyStone,
whose western
l)ounclary lies across
38" Street from the
campus of
Augustana Couege.

Alleman’s original




l)uilcling architecture shows elements of the Italian Renaissance style. The
recessed corner entrance, seen in the p}lOtOS, has triple arches on the
ground level. Above are tall multi—paned windows edged in stone with a
decorative iron railing at their base. Other decorative features including
the carved vases at the roof line of the main entrance and the use of a
horizontal band of stone (a stringcourse) between the first and second
floors are also indications of the Italian Renaissance style The ]:)ulldmg
was des1gne(l Ly architect Bdward Lerch of Roclz Islancl and built 1)y the
T.S. Willis
Company of
Janesviﬂe,
Wisconsin, who also
constructed Rock
Island City Hall. Tt
was necessary to fill
a ravine to provicle a
site for
construction.

The idea to
begin a Roman
Catholic high
school in Rock
Island County was originaﬂy the idea of Rev. John B. Culemans of
Sacred Heart Church of Moline in 1926. Monsignor Durkin of St.
Joseph’s Higl'l School in Rock Island acloptecl the project and saw it to
fruition. He was instrumental in locating the site, which was })ough’c from
the W.L. Velie estate for $6,500 in 1931. After loeing clela.yecl ]oy the
Great Depression and World War 1I, ground was broken in 1948. The
$1,600,000 high school was dedicated August 28, 1949, and named for
Father George Alleman. Fr. Alleman, born in Stras})org, France in

1806, became a priest of the Dominican order and served as a missionary

in the Mississippi Va.Hey, 1ea.rning the 1anguages of many Indian tribes,
from 1838 until 1863.

Enrollment that first year was just under 600 students, with half
from Rock Island. Tuition was $50 per year per pupil. By 1967, when
enrollment reached its peale, the school served 1300 students. The first
principal was Father John O’Connor, who was just 28 years old when he
became chief administrator of the new scllool; he continued as principal

for 18 years. Fr. Alleman was the first permanent priest in Rock Island
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County and laid the cornerstone of St. James C}lurch, now called St.
Mary’s, in 1851. Fr. Alleman was a friend of Joseph Smith, founder of
the Mormon religion; he frequently visited the Mormon settlement at
Nauvoo, Ilinois on his travels along the Mississippi. After the Mormons
left Nauvoo, Fr. Aﬂemam, who died in St. Louis in 1866, used some of
the stone from the Mormon ]ouil&ings in St. James church. Later that
stone was incorporated into the rectory at St. Mary’s. A piece of that
stone was eventuaﬂy pla.ce(l in the Alleman High School cornerstone.
Over the years the original school has grown in size, adding including

classrooms, a chapel, a gymnasium and a performing arts center.

3. Conrad Lindberg House (Ca. 1895)
3826 7th Avenue
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Located in the sub-area of Fairview (as are numbers 4-6), the Conrad
Lindl)erg House was built in 1895 and is an outstanding example of the
Queen Anne s’cy]e. This style was popular in the United States from the
1880s to the 1910s and is characterized Ly its corner tower and full
width front porch. Note the classical columns with spin(ﬂeworlz raﬂings



on the porcl'l and the fishscale shingles clecorating the gable. The narrow
“roof” supported })y flat brackets (modiﬂions) that separate the front gahle
from the lower floors of the house is also characteristic of the Queen
Anne s’cyle. On the east side of the house you can see the stained glass

NG & window inscribed with
Lincﬂ)ergys personal motto
“Ora et lal)ora," which means
“work and pray.” The exterior
of this home has been
faithfuﬂy restored based on an
original photograph.

T Udings -
a5
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This house was originaﬂy
the home of Conrad Lintﬂ)erg p
a systematic theology professor
at Augustana College and
Theological Seminary £rom 1890 to 1930. He purchasecl two lots o£ land
from Uriclge M. Whiffen in 1892, ancl, ]3y 1895, had completecl his
house. In 1902, he was honored })y the King of Sweden with the Knight
of the Royal Order of the North Star. For the next ten years he was
Vice-President of the Coﬂege and Seminary and, from 1919-1930, was
the Dean of the Seminary.

4. John and Albertina Arnell House
(Ca. 1897 and 1905)
3904 7th Avenue

»’/ ‘ 2 : . : In 1897, John
S ; 4. Gustav Swenson
and his wife

' Albertina
purchasecl the
property in the
Brooks 3rd
Addition and
built the Queen
Anne house at
3904 Yth Avenue. Iohn Swenson was a farmer in Orion, and became the
Supenntendent of the Tri- City Rallway when he moved to Rock Island.
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He later c}langed his name to Jol’m Arnell. The house was built to
accommodate a large family; both ]ohn7s father and Albertina’s father
also lived with them at various times over the years.

Shortly after the house was built, John and Albertina had a daughter,
Mabel. She married Dr. Paul Young]aerg in 1926. They took up
residence in the home, and it has remained in the family Dr. Youngloerg
was a famlly practitioner in Molme, and Mabel Youngberg taught music

and elocution at Augustana ’
Conege. In the 19505 an
addition to the rear of the

house was constructed to

accommodate an antique
s}lop, operate(l l)y Mrs.
Youngl)erg.

The house to the east
of the Youngberg’s at 3906
7th Avenue was built in
1905. In 1970 Dr. Paula
Arneﬂ, claugl'lter of the

Younglaerg’s, moved back

Il

j

into the original family

house with her hushand Dr.
Richard Arnell. In 1975
the Arnells purchased the
east house, and connected
the two with an addition.
Although the original front porch is missing, the recently constructed
new porch was designed to complement the turn-of-the century
architecture of the house. In a&dition, two adjacent parcels to the east,
which contained three tightly p]acecl houses, were purchased and two
small houses demolished. The Arnells developed the property as
1anclscapec1 grounds and urban garclen.

The original house has seen five generations of the Arnell family,
with additions made over the years to accommodate farnily needs. The
home shows influences of the Queen Anne style, inclucling the steeply
pitched roof, multiple gal)les and asymmetrical facade. The original front
porch on the north has been covered Ly a one-story addition, but the
replica’cecl porch on the west side is based on photographs of the original.
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The “ginger]:)rea&" ornamentation in the spin&leworlz ra.iling, turned
columns and decorative porch ga]ale are common features of Queen Anne
houses. This s’cyle often uses several different colors of paint to emphasize
the intricate architectural details.

5. Anna Olsson House (Ca. 1900)
3912 8th Avenue
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The house located at 3912 8th
Avenue was built using the
assets of the estate of Olof
Olsson. Dr. Olsson, who
emigratecl to the United States
from Sweden in 1869, was an
ordained Lutheran minister
who later became the third
President of Augustana
Couege and Theologlcal
Seminary. He and his wife
Anna, who died in 1887, had four children — Anna, Maria, Lydla, and
]ohannes born July 4, 1877. When Dr. Olsson died on May 12, 1900,
he provi(],ed in his last will and testament that a home be built for his
children from his estate’s assets. The home was built at a cost of $3,271
an(l was pro]:)aMy completed in late 1900. From at (late until 1962, one
or more of his four children resided here.

All of the Olsson children were educated at Augustana Coﬂege, and
all were self-sufficient. Maria invented and pa’cented a Combination
Collar Fastener which could be used for collars or belts. This invention
took the place of whalebone and of hooks and eyes. Lyclia was employed

as a l)oolzleeeper for a number of years and was also the assistant librarian
at Augustana College for over 20 years. Johannes showed his true passion
was music. Through most of his ]ife, ]ollannes was a music teacher,
musician and composer. He was the last surviving child of Dr. Olsson
ancl clied in 1967 at age 90.

Anna, the oldest child, was the most renowned. In 1888, she was the
second woman to graduate from Augustana College with a Bachelor of

Arts clegree. Born in Sweden, she was fluent in Swedish and French as

well as English. She was a prolific author and had numerous magazine
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articles and manuscripts puhlished, the majority in the Swedish 1anguage.
Many of her writings were for chilclren, and in Sweden, the popularity of
her children’s stories ranked with those of Mark Twain and Harriet
Beecher Stowe in this country. One of her boolzs, En Prarieunges
Func[eringar (Chlld of the Prairie) had five different versions printed. The
first version was prin’cecl 1)y the Augustana Book Concern in 1917, and
the last in Sweden in 1984. Throughout her life, Anna maintained
strong bonds with Augustana Coﬂege, Augustana Syno& and Swedish-
Americans locaﬂy and nationaﬂy. Anna Olsson died on February 15,
1946, at 79 years of age.

The Anna Olsson House is unique in KeyStone because of its
simplifie(l Shingle style which is unusual in smaller homes. This s’cyle,
which developecl along the eastern seaboard of the United States in the
1880s, is most often associated with large summer homes designed 1)y
major American architects. However, this small home with its wide
shingles framing the steeply pitchecl front gable and the deeply sloped roof
extending over the porch held up l)y classical Tuscan columns is an
interesting variation. The interior has most of its original features

including built-in bookcases and a tiled fireplace.
The Anna Olson House is a designated Rock Island landmark.

6. Longfellow School (1934)
7th Avenue and 42nd Street

Originaﬂy known as the “Number Seven” school, its name was changed
to Longfellow School in 1898 in honor of the great American poet,
Henry Wadsworth Longfeﬂow. The first Romanesque Revival l)uilcling
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was cles’croyecl ij fire in 1934, with clamage estimated at $60,000,
alt}lough fire doors saved the south annex. With students attendmg
classes in other school ])mlcllngs, Longfeﬂow was rebuilt qulclely in the
popular Tudor style
which was influenced 1)y
late-medieval Luﬂclings
in England.
Construction cost
$109,000 and
incorpora’cecl the existing
south annex. Espemaﬂy

characteristic of this
s‘cyle are the decorative diamond patterns on the brick walls , the
contrasting stones that e(].ge the corners of the l)ulldlng, the taH
rectangular grouped windows and the open pierced stone designs and
finials at the roof line above the central front doors. The round topped
front entries are framed })y classical Tonic pilasters, in(lica’cing an [talian
Renaissance influence. This school was one of the several Rock Island
elementary schools clesignecl about this time, and in similar sty]es, 13y
William Stuhr of the Rock Island firm Cervin and Stuhr.

Miss Nettie Dodge was the principal of Longfeﬂow School during the
construction of the new school. When she retired in 1948, she was a 46-
year veteran of the Rock Island school system, having served 21 of those
years as principal at Longfeﬂow.

7. Carl and Julia Stephenson House (Ca. 1911)
4207 7th Avenue

The Carl and ]ulia Stephenson
House is located in the Columbia
Park sul)-area, named for the 1893
Columbian Exhibition. The
Stephenson House is one of many

fine American Foursquare homes

built from the 1900s to the mid-
1920s in KeyStone. This 1911
house exhibits the typical two-story,
box-like shape toppe& with a hip




Many clesign variations, especiaﬂy in the exterior materials and front
porch trim, can be found in Foursquares. Here stucco is used not only on
the walls but also to create the plain column supports and the closed
porch railing. Beveled glass in the upper panes of the front porch window
and the oval window in the wooden front door were also common
decorative features at the time.

This traditional home was built for Carl Elwin and Julia Stephenson
late in 1911. Mr. Stepllenson was a foreman for the Moline Wheel
Company and purchased the lot from Jeanette McMaster in 1910 for
$1350. The McMaster farnﬂy, members of the Old Settlers Association,
had purchased the land from William E. Brooks in 1867, with a first
mortgage loan made l)y the Augustana Evangelical Lutheran Church and
a later loan given l)y Levi McCabe, a prominent Rock Island businessman
who lived in the neighborhood. After construction was completed, the
Stephensons occupie& the house in early 1912 and remained owners until

1964.

8. Spencer Memorial Methodist Episcopal Church (1903)
4300 7th Avenue

The Spencer Memorial Methodist Eplscopa] Church orlglnated
through a request Ly the ;

Reverend J. B. Rutter to
the district conference to
organize a church in the
cleveloping Edgewood
Park district. He did this
in Septem]aer 1900.
First, Rev. Rutter and his
wife organized a Sunday

school, then a Ladies” Aid
society, and finaﬂy a

group of trustees i
organizecl the church. The ==

following were the first

trustees: David ] Sears, S. J Ferguson, W.E. Scott, ] A. Pauley,

Andrew Olson, James Gauley and T.C. Nutter. Rev. Rutter was selected
the first pastor. The church was named in honor of William Spencer, a
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devout layman of the church in Rock Island.

A donation of two lots was made ]oy Frank Robinson at the corner of
7th Avenue and 43rd Street. The Lui]ding, which cost about $20,000,
was completed on October 25, 1903, although it was not £ormaﬂy
dedicated until Septem])er 15, 1907. The cleclicatory address was
delivered Ly Bis}lop Cranston. Several of the spealeers at the celebration
spolee of the difficult time the congregation had in freeing the Luilding
from debt.

Still plagued ]oy Luilding debt in 1925, Reverend H.A. Kirk headed a
movement to free the congregation from the construction and
improvements obliga’cions. By that time, there were outstanding
mortgages on the church l)uilding to both the parent church and to local
banks for the origina.l construction, adclitions, a new furnace and a
parsonage. On August 5, 1925, the congregation oﬁiciaﬂy burned the
mortgage in a commemorative celebration. At the end of the assembly,
the congregation unanimously voted to raise Pastor Kirk's salary l)y $300
per year.

When the Spencer Memorial congregation merged with Centenary
Methodist Episcopal members in 1949 and moved to a new building at
38th Street and 18th Avenue in Rock Island that was renamed the
Memorial Heights Methodist Church, the former Spencer Memorial
Methodist Episcopal Church was sold to the Bethel Assem]ﬁly of God.

From 1974 to 1984, a local artist, Dean Sc}lroecler, occupiecl the
sanctuary for his private residence and rented another portion of the
Luilcling as an apartment. Today, it houses the congregation of Templo
Elim Spanish Assem]oly of God.

Spencer Memorial Methodist Episcopal Church is an example of
Gothic Revival architecture which was influenced Ly late medieval
I)uilclings in Western Europe. Often seen in American church clesign
from the 1840s on, the imposing corner tower with a crenellated (tOOtll-
1i12e) top, the corner wall buttresses and the contrasting stone trim
emp}lasizing pointecl gaMes over the doors are very common features of

this s’cyle. Large areas of stained glass are especiaﬂy noteworthy.
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9. Spencer Memorial Methodist Episcopal Parsonage
(1917)
711 43rd Street

The rectory is another
fine example of an American
Foursquare home. This time
the exterior is clad in narrow
clapl)oarcl, while the front
porch shows influences of
Craftsman style in the
square, tapere(], or “battered”
columns that rest on solid
clap})oard ralllngs The PS5
exposecl brick chunney flanked ]oy srnaH hlgh windows is also a
characteristic of the Craftsman influence found in this home. The
interior of the house is intact, with an unaltered floor plan, some original
kitchen calainets, original doors and woodwork, a beautiful built-in buffet
and a fireplace with a wood mantel.

The Spencer Memorial Methodist Episcopal Church erected this
parsonage in 1917. The trustees of the church financed the construction
of the parsonage with a $3400 mortgage from Peopleys National Bank.
The mortgage on the parsonage and the main church laui]ding was
released in 1925 with a celebration l)y the congregation. When the

church transferred hands to Bethel Assembly of God, 711 43rd Street
continued to serve its parsonage function. Not until 1974 did the house

become a private residence.

10. Hjalmer and Emily Nyquist House (Ca. 1907)
807 43rd Street

The Hjalmer and Emily Nyquist House
was built around 1907. He was a printer
with the Augus’cana Book Concern, a
Lutheran puMishing house located on
38t11 Street and 7’5}1 Avenue from 1898
to 1962. One of his Lrothers, Swan, also
worked at the Book Concern while other
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members of his £amily, Adam and Carl, worked as pipe organ builders.
The entire family lived in KeyStone within Walleing distance of each
other.

The Nyquist House is influenced Ly the Queen Anne style with a
steeply pitchecl roof, multiple roof galales, asymmetrical shape and full
width front porch all found on larger and more decorative Queen Anne
homes (see number 3). Especially note the small Palladian window in the
front ga.l)le and the Tuscan columns on the porch which characterize

what is often called the “Free Classic” Queen Anne.

11. Charles and Mary Pratt House (Ca. 1909)
811 43rd Street

The Charles and Mary
Pratt House is yet another
variation of the American
Foursquare style that shows
the characteristic clormers,
one on the front and one on
each side which extend out
from the hippecl roof. Each
dormer’s roof is a miniature
version of the 1arger roof. The

classicaﬂy influenced Tuscan
columns resting on concrete block piers and the simple porch railing are
also often seen in this type of house as is the asymmetrical placement of
the door and the two balanced windows on the second floor. Especiaﬂy
note the beveled glass found in the front porch windows.

Charles C. Pratt was an engineer for the Chicago, Rock Island and
Pacific Railroad. For many years, his son, Charles Jr., and his wife Lena
lived right next door at 815 43rd Street. In 1920, the house was
purchased ]:)y Clarence B. and Martha Kennedy Laflin, who were also
1ong—time residents. Mr. Laflin worked for several years as a laborer at the
Arsenal and Deere and Company and as a machine assembler in Bast
Moline. Later he owned and operatecl Laflin’s Orchard, which was located
on the farm where he grew up south of Milan.

17



12. Frank and Zuah Weller House (Ca. 1909)
830 43rd Street

This house is an unusual
Craftsman style home
because of its hipped roof.
This style, which has roots
in California at the \ F
]:)eginning of the 20th - L}

century, is characterized t)y R i

wide overhanging roofs with L '

visible rafters. Both the front ga]ole and side shed dormers on this house
show these features. This one-and-a-half story house with its horizontal

emphasis has a solid porctl railing and tall brick corner columns extencting
from ground level to above the porch roof. These features also tlelp
ictentity it as a Craftsman style home. Sometimes such homes are referred
to as Lungalows.

Frank Weller was the superintendent of the Carriage and Buggy
Department at the D.M. Sechler Carriage Co. in Moline which sold the
“1argest and best variety of vehicles made in the West.” Previous to this
he was ernployect t)y four other carriage companies in the Midwest,
inclu(ting the Fostoria Carriage Co. in Fostoria, Otlio, and t)y
Studebaker Brothers in South Bend, Indiana. He and his wite, Zuatl,
had four children.

In 1916, it was sold to George and Florence Borg. Mr. Borg was
the son of Swedish-born Charles Borg, a senior member of the firm Borg
and Beclz, manufacturers of machines for farm implements. The tactory
held patents for the to]lowing, among others: the Borg automatic wagon
tongue stlaping machine (1904), a porctl column mactline, an automatic
wheel sancting rnaclline, and the Borg automatic stave trimming and
grooving machine. George was secretary and general manager at the firm.
He had taken business courses at Augustana College. In the process of
rnactlining clutch casings for Velie, George Borg, Marshall Beck and Gus
Nelson invented a new clutch in 1909. George Borg opene(t a new
operation in Ctlicago, and moved in 19109. Previously impoverished
Charles Borg sold his interests and ended up a millionaire. George went
on to consolidate major parts malzers, torming Borg—Warner
Corporation. During the 19205, this company was capitalizect at $90
million dollars and George Borg was elected presi(tent.
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13. James and Della Williams House (Ca. 1910)
831 43rd Street

James L. and Della R.
- Williams built the
home at 831 43rd
Street in 1910. Mr.
Williams was an
engineer for the
Chicago, Rock Island
and Pacific Railway.
He worked first as a
fireman and then as an
engineer on the train
from Rock Island to
Vaﬂey Junction in Des Moines, lowa. Prior to her marriage, Mrs.
Williams worked for the Young and McCombs clepartment store as head
of “Ready—to—Wear." She also sold real estate for Mr. H.K. Walker later
in her life. Mr. and Mrs. Williams had two daughters. Daughter Blanche
remembers moving into 831 43rd Street as a five—year—ol(l when Lincoln
Park was referred to as “pasture land.” Blanche and her husband, Dr. C.
Arnold Serenius, gracluatecl from Augustana Coﬂege in 1926. They were
married in 1932 and moved in with her parents. Dr. Serenius held
several positions at Augustana Coﬂege, including director of public

relations and assistant to the presiclent. He was active in the Rotary Club,
serving as presiden’c during the early 1950s. Mrs. Serenius taught at
Franklin and Washington Junior High Schools and at Horace Mann
School in Rock Island. After the death of Mr. Williams in 1937, Mus.
Williams and Dr. and Mrs. Serenius resided in this home until 1954.
This house is another example of an American Foursquare home in
KeyStone. Especially note the stucco claclding with simple haﬂ-timbering
on the second floor sllowing Craftsman influence. The massive short
Tuscan columns resting on solid stucco piers dominate the front porch
and show a strong classical influence as does the semi-circular fanlight

found above the two small paired windows in the front dormer.
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14. Kurt and Emma Wahlstrom House (Ca. 1912)
845 43rd Street

¥ The Kurt and
Emma Wahlstrom

House is a

Craftsman style
one-and-a-half story
]oungalow built in
1912. This
stuccoed home with
its deeply sloped
side—ga]alecl roof has
a large shed dormer
window and a full
front porch with
columns influenced ]oy Prairie style architecture. The development of the
Prairie style at the turn of the 20th century in C}licago is often associated
with Frank Lloyd Wright. This is evident in the geometric design at the
top of the sloping pOI‘Cll piers and the solid porch railing with horizontal
lines emphasize(l with a contrasting color at the top of the porcl'l railing.
Geometric designs continue in the beveled glass of the front door. The
interior of the home features a flreplace, built-in dlnlng hutch hardwood

ﬂoors, and oak trim, beams and panelmg

This home was built lay F.O. Williams for
$3755 for Kurt F. Wahlstrom. Mz
Wahlstrom, who was a piano tuner, lived
in the home until his death in 1919. Mrs.
Emma Wahlstrom, who was a dressmaleer,
remained in the home another 33 years,
until she sold itin 1952 to Ronald C.
Rohling. Mr. Rol‘lling worked as a clerk at
International Harvester Company. The
home has had two additional owners, who

have carefuﬂy maintained its historic

integrity.
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15. HasselquistRamsey House (Ca. 1918)
920 43rd Street

Early records indicate
some involvement of
Dwigllt Deere Wiman
with this house; he may
have built the house on
speculation. By 1922,

: the house was home to
Lennart S. and Martha
Hasselquist. Mr.
Hasselquist was a clerk

at Deere and Company.

Six years la’cer, Jchey
sold the house to Walter and Ethel Palm. Mr. Palm was a laborer at
International Harvester, but with the onset the next year of the Great
Depression, the Palms defaulted on the house, and l)y 1933 ownership
reverted Laclz to the Hasselquists. During 1934-35 the house was rentecl
})y Harry A. and Rul)y E. Nelson; Mr. Nelson was a manager at the Rock
[s/ana’Argus. In 1935, the home was sold to Julian Waﬂing Ramsey and
Helen Brandicon Ramsey, who owned the home until 1972. Mr. Ramsey
was an editor and editorial writer for the Argus. In 1972, the home was
Lought Ly Franklin D. Bell and Constance J. Bell.

The Hasselquist—Ramsey House is an American Foursquare which
shows decorative influences of both the Prairie and Craftsman styles.
Note the geometric cletailing on the top of the sloping piers columns
which are similar to the columns on the Wahlstrom House (num]oer 14).
Here the short tapered square columns rest on concrete block bases with
the center base laclzing a column, a common decorative device found in
Craftsman homes. Also the two windows on the second floor have vertical
divisions on the upper half, a design common to both Prairie and
Craftsman sty]e ]ouilclings.

The interior features plas’cer Waus, leaded glass Windows, picture
ra.ilings, hardwood floors, and original oak woodwork and stairway. The

dormer alcove has a commanding view of east Rock Island and west

Moline.
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16. Levi and Marion McCabe House (Ca. 1886)
927 43rd Street

Levi S.
McCabe
believed in the
dream of a new
city, Edgewood
Park. He
invested money
in the
development of
the area and
built his home
here circa
1886. The
hiutop home

s’cood alone on

a large parcel of land and was a syml)ol of the estate size lots and homes
McCabe envisioned. But l)y 1905, Levi McCabe had given up his dream.
He and his wife Marion moved to a larger home in a prestigious area
along 5th Avenue. His large lot was divided into smaller parcels and the
home was sold to Oscar and Jennie Lundahl.

Levi McCabe is best known as the founder of McCabe’s Department
Store, a business that existed in Rock Island for over 100 years. He
openecl his first store, McCabe’s Plunder Shop, in 1870. By 1913
McCal)e s was locatecl ina handsome new laullcllng (1713 3rd Avenue)

daker: and offered not only household and
personal items, but a branch post
oﬂ;ice, rest and reading rooms, 1ong

distance phones, telegraph service

and a tea room. In 1902, Mr.
McCabe was elected to the Illinois
State Senate. He served one four-
year term and declined to run for
reelection due to the demands of his
business affairs. Levi McCabe died
in 1915, but the business bearing his name remained a household word

in Rock Island for decades to come.
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Oscar Lunclahl, the home’s second owner, was listed as a boolelzeeper
or cashier in city clirectories, but no company or business name was given.
In 1915, Hazel, John W., and Richard Lundahl, all students at nearby
Augustana Coﬂege, were also listed as hving here. The home remained in
the Lundahl family until the mid-1930s, after which it was owned by
Godfrey Youngquist, the manager of the Augustana Book Concern.

The Levi McCabe House is an example of the Queen Anne style
from the 1880s and is notable for its squarecl corner tower with shingle
trim and small brackets, a complex roofline and an asymmetric footprint.
The classicauy inspired wraparound porch was prol)a])ly added in the early
1900s, as earlier homes typicaﬂy had small porches. The porch roof with
a deep eave overhang is suppor’ced ]:)y classicaﬂy-inﬂuenced Tonic half
height columns resting on concrete bases with turned balusters in the

railing .

17. Oliver and Wilhelmina Olson House (Ca. 1892)
1001 44th Street

The Oliver and Wilhelmina
Olson House is a smaller sized
variation of the Queen Anne
style. Its intricately ornamented
front and side gal)les with wood
shingle trim and a narrow roof
line supportecl lay brackets are
common features of the Queen
Anne s’cyle. The Wrap—around
front pOI‘Cll is pro])al)ly the
result an early 1900s
remodeling. Simple Tuscan
columns with dentil-like trim beneath the roof e&ge , rather than the
spin(ﬂeworlz and “gingerl)read" trim found in ’cypical Queen Anne porches
(see number 3), make this a Free Classic variant of the Queen Anne
Style.

In 1892, Oliver P. And Wilhelmina “Minnie” Olson purchased the
property at 1001 44th Street in the Edgewoocl Park Addition for $425.
Later that year, construction Legan on the new Queen Anne home with a

$1,700 mortgage. Oliver Olson was a clerk with the Augustana Book
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In 1897, Mr. Olson became the Assistant Postmaster of Rock
Island, a position he would maintain for over 25 years. Mr. Olson also
continued to p]ay an active part in the affairs of the Augustana Synocl.
Oliver Olson died in 1930, at Which time his Widow took possession of
the home. In 1938, the property was transferred to Deere and Company.

In 1927 the second floor was converted into a rental apartment with
numerous tenants over the years. In 1936 Marion and Audrey Smith
moved into the apartment at 1001%% 44th Street. Marion was a
machinist and worked for International Harvester Company, and later for
Reynolds Engineering. Audrey Smith worked as an Avon Lady. In 1945
Marion and Aud,rey Smith purchased the property from Deere and
Company.

18. Hawkins-Grafstrom House (Ca. 1894)
831 44th Street

The lot this house was
built on was sold to

S. David Hawkins in J
1893 ancl the abstract Ir{ -
states that “the ¥
grantee agrees for
himself and his heirs
and assigns that no

dweuing shall ever be

erected on said lot

costing less than — R ]
$1000 above the - : pae .- =
foundation.” Hawkins was a clerk at the Augustana Book Concern.
In 1903 the property was sold to Olof Grafstrom. He was a Swedish
immigrant, an in’cernationaﬂy known painter and a Professor of Art at
Augustana Couege. His reputation was further enhanced ]:)y altarpieces
which are hung in churches throughout the United States. One can be
seen at St. John’s Lutheran Church on 7th Avenue (numl)er 22). In
1913, his wife, Anna E., was listed as an instructor at the coﬂege.
Interestingly, after her profession Legan to be listed in the city directories,
she was reported as “})oar&ing" at this address. That term was frequen’cly
used for adult children who lived at llome, rather than a wife. She had a
china painting business at 636 38th Street and later in the Reliance
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Building in Moline. The Grafstroms and their two claughters lived in the
house until 1924

The Hawkins-Grafstrom House is a
vernacular gable-front home. This vernacular
type was particularly suited to narrow city lots
and its simple one-to-two story shape was
sometimes augmented with Queen Anne or
Craftsman cletailing. The fishscale wood
shingle trim in the upper front ga]ole shows
Queen Anne influences while the pOI‘C}l with
its tapered piers on brick bases shows
Craftsman influences and suggests a later
addition.

19. Jordan-Bandy House (Ca. 1912)
815 44th Street

The ]ordan-Bandy House is
another fine example of the American
Foursquare style, this time with
classically influenced Ionic half heig]nt
columns resting on cement block
bases. The flared or “bellcast” eclges of
the hip roof are often found in
Foursquare houses, as is the stucco
used on the exterior walls.

George and Nellie Jordan were the
first occupants of this home in 1912.
The Iordans were listed in city directories only for the year 1912, with no
occupation given. In 1913 the house was listed as vacant. By 1914, it
had been sold to Claude and Lillian Ban&y. Mr. Ban&y was a dentist in
the Kimball Building in Moline. The Bandys lived in the house until
1934.
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20. Robert and Estella Woodburn House (Ca. 1909)
800 44th Street

Real estate, insurance and
investment specula‘cion was
Robert Woodburn's business.
He built this house sometime
Letween 1907 a.n(], 1909 af’cer
moving to Rock Island from
Hillsdale. The well-known real
estate man had an office in
the Chase Builcling in
downtown Moline. He sparlzed
a 1916 ]Juilding boom in
downtown Moline with his $60,000 purchase of the Bio Theater. Two
years later he and Estella moved from 800 44th Street.

The Woodburn House is an example of the Colonial Revival style
which incorporates a wide range of different su})’cypes. All the variations

were, in some way, influenced l)y architecture from the United States’
Colonial periocl of the 18th century. Sometimes referred to as the “classic
l)ox, ” this home shares features with Foursquare homes, especiaﬂy the
dormer windows in the hippecl roof and the two story box-like s}rape.
However, the symmetrical, balanced placement of the windows and door
and the cen’cral, triangular pe&iment suppor’ced I)y Tuscan columns in the

center of the porch are all features of the Colonial Revival s’cyle, popular
from the 1880s to the 1950s.

21. Pantel-Onion House (Ca. 1912)
709-11 44th Street
e This house is another example

of a “classic box” because of
its symmetry and pedimented
porch roof. However, here
this style is used for a double
house. The simp]e vertical
supports and solid porch rails
form rectangular pOI‘Cll

openings that with the stucco

facade and overhanging eaves



also show decided influence from simple Prairie style homes. Note the
unusual angled corners holding windows on both levels.

The first two families to live in this house were Herman and Linn
Pantel and William and Winifred Onion. In 1915 two new families live(],
here, the Lul)ys and the Groves. Over the years many families with
diverse occupations called this sta’cely double house home. The tenants of
longes‘c tenure were Delmar and Lucia Dooley. Mr. Dooley ]oegan his
career as a draftsman for Velie Carriage and eventually established his
own mechanical engineering firm. The Dooleys lived at 709 from 1918
to 1924 and then at 711 until 1954.

22. Swedish Zion Lutheran Church (1907)
4501 7th Avenue

The Swedish Zion Lutheran
Church, now known as St. John’s
Lutheran Church, was completed
in late 1907 at a cost of $11,343.
The architect was Olof Z. Cervin,
a graduate of Augustana Coﬂege,
who was appointecl official church
architect of the Augustana Synod
in 1896. The general contractor
was Emil Peterson.

Their Swedish heritage was the
common bond of the first members
of the church. Sunday morning
and afternoon services were
conducted solely in Swedish and
English services were not
conducted until after World War I. In 1928, Sweclish Zion Lutheran
Church merged with Grace Church and the new congregation was given

its present name of St. John's Lutheran.

Grace Church was organized in 1888 l)y members of the Augustana
Coﬂege faculty. Up until this time, most of the coHege and seminary
Worshiped in Swedish at the First Lutheran Church in Moline. The
stimulus to organize Grace Church was to have the services conducted in
English. The church was located at 4401 7th Avenue, Rock Island and it
was the hope of the charter members that it would serve the
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community as well as the English spealeing members of Augustana
Coﬂege. When the Swedish Zion Lutheran congregation abandoned the
use of the Swedish language in their services in 1928, the two
congregations merged.

Olof Cervin designed the Swedish Zion Lutheran Church in the
Gothic Revival style. The tall bell tower with crenellated (too’cllecl) e(lges
’copped lay a steeple, the corner wall buttresses on the tower, the pointed
arched door and window openings, and the use of brick with contrasting
stone trim are all features of this style. The interior of the sanctuary is
especiauy interesting because of the original stained glass windows, the
ceiling beams similar to hammerbeam ceiling designs in late medieval
English churches and the large painted altarpiece l)y Olof Grafstrom (see
number 18).

23. Sifford and Naomi Johnson House (Ca. 1906)
4502 8th Avenue

The Sifford and Naomi

Johnson House is in the
Brooks Grove sub-area of
KeyStone, as are the
remaining homes on this
driving tour. This fine
American Foursquare
home features a recessed
front door, &ouble—paire(],
windows on the second

ﬂOOI‘ and diamoncl paned

windows in the roof
dormers, all unusual
decorative additions to this clesign. The Tuscan half height columns on
the front porch rest on tapered pe(lestals made of cement ]3100125, a
Craftsman influence.

Sifford and Naomi ]ohnson built this home in 1906. M. Johnson
was a booleleeeper for Deere and Company. The ]ohnsons lived in this
home for 50 years.
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24. John and Augusta Weigand House (Ca. 1906)
4435-37 9th Avenue

At first glance, the Weigand
House looks like a typical
American Foursquare. But it is
quite unusual in that the
Foursquare plan has been
enlargecl to create a double house

configura’cion. It is constructed

j ! of stone-textured cement Hocle,
] ﬂL a material which was hlstorlcaﬂy
called “patent stone.’ To maintain the narrow front appearance, the
main entries have been recessed. The }uppecl roof on the dormers match
the main roof. Notice the diamond—shaped window panes in these
dormers.

In 1905, Augusta E. Weigancl purchased this lot for $625. Several
months 1ater, she and her husband, ]ohn C., who was a 1a1)orer, took out
a mortgage for $3,500 to build this two-family home. When they sold
the property and moved a few years later, the Weigands were the last
owners to occupy one side of the home until 1946.

Qccupations of the renters were diverse and included mechanics,
macllinists, a real estate agent, an Arsenal inspector, a grocer, engineers,
laLorers, and a Tri-City Railway conductor. The next owners to occupy
4435, until the mi&—lQ()Os, were Paul A. Houancl, who worked as a
steamfitter at International Harvester, and his Wi£e, Anna. Their
daughter and son-in-law, Hyacinth and William Price, lived at 4437
until 1983.
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25. Bert and Esther Schultz House (Ca. 1930)
4431 9th Avenue

Built about 1930, this

home is one of the later
homes in this part of
KeyStone and lilzely the last
one to be built on this
block. Tt was built for Bert
G. Schultz and his wife,
Esther. Mr. Schultz was a

gas plant superintendent at

Peoples Power Company.
The farnily lived here for
about 15 years. Harold Wenos, who had his insurance agency in the
1’101’1’16, hve(], here from the rnic],—1950s throug}l the micl—lQTOs.

This is a Craftsman bungalow with a side gal)lecl roof that slopes to cover
the full 1engt1'1 enclosed front porch. That roof sllape as well as the stick
decoration in the top of the roof dormer are common features in
Craftsman homes. The half-timbered (lesign in the stuccoed second floor
is reminiscent of the Tudor s’cyle.

Buil’c al)out 1930, this home is one o£ the later hornes in this part of
KeyStone and llleely the last one to be built on this block. Tt was built for
Bert G. Schultz and his Wl£e, Esther. Mr. Schultz was a gas plant
supenn’cenden’c at Peoples Power Company.
The famﬂy lived here for about 15 years.
Harold Wenos, who had his insurance agency
in the home, lived here from the mid—1950s
through the mid-1970s.

This is a Craftsman laungalow with a side
gabled roof that slopes to cover the full length
enclosed front pOI‘Cll. That roof sllape as well as
the stick decoration in the top of the roof
dormer are common features in Craftsman
homes. The half-timbered (lesign in the
stuccoed second floor is reminiscent of the

Tudor s’cyle.
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26. William and Geneva Hagedorn House (Ca. 1917)
4430 9th Avenue

The William and \' o e r

Geneva Hagedorn
House is another
example of a
Craftsman bungalow
that also has a side
gabled roof. But here
the stucco and the
heavy wooden railings
in front of the roof
dormer and on the _
full width front porch are reminiscent of Swiss chalets. The large
brackets at the e(],ges of the deeply overhanging roof and the rafters
evident at the roof edge across the entire front of the ]:)ungalow indicate
how different Lungalows can be (see number 25).

This home was built about 1917. William Hagedorn and his Wife,
Geneva, were the first occupants, remaining here for only about 10 years.
Mr. Hagedorn was an accountant for Moline Plow. After William died in
1924, his wife continued to live here. Other long—term occupants include

Wilson and Florence Avery, from the early 1930s until about 1950. M.
Avery was a traffic manager at the Deere and Mansur Works of Deere

and Company.

27. Wilhelm and Annie Bjorkman House (1917)
4414 10th Avenue

The Bjorlzrnan House is the final home on
the driving tour. It is unusual due to the
steep 10’:, which required the garage to be
built into the hill beneath the house. Built
in 1917 for $2500 the house shows the
major features of an American
Foursquare, including the two story, box
shape, the galalecl dormers set into a hippecl
roof, the two balanced windows on the

second ﬂoor, the asymmetrically placed
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front cloor, the beveled glass in small windows on the front and si&e, and
the full width front porch with a simple railing and plain brick columns.
The steep lot necessitates an uncommon side entrance to the porc]'l.

When Wilhelm A. and Annie S. Bjorlzman built this house, Mr.
Bjorleman was in the printing business and was associated with a
newspaper in the area. In 1958, 1. Parker and Edith L. Maxey Lougll’c
the house from the elderly Bjorlzmans and lived in it for 35 years, raising
their family here, as did the Bjorlemans. Mr. Maxey was a minister who
moved to this area to teach at the Bible Missionary Institute in Rock
Island. During his 30 years at the coﬂege, dozens of Bible college
students lived in the commodious house. Many visiting ministers and
other friends from around the world were entertained here. Altogether,
hundreds of guests came and went cluring the Maxey years. The house is
still owned by one of the Maxey’s children.
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